
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

WEDNESDAY, 21 JANUARY 2009 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 6.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of the Meeting held on 17th November, 2008 (previously circulated).    
  
3. Items of urgent business authorised by the Chairman  
 
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
5. Constitutional Amendment – Composition of Cabinet Liaison Groups (Pages 1 - 3) 
 
 Report of the Chief Executive.   
  
6. Democratic Renewal Phase 2 (Pages 4 - 13) 
 
 Report of the Chief Executive.   
  
7. Results of Internal Audit Work (Pages 14 - 21) 
 
 Report of Internal Audit Manager.  
  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Malcolm Thomas (Chairman), Jon Barry, Abbott Bryning, Roger Dennison, 

Janice Hanson, Geoff Knight and Keith Sowden 
 

 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Shirley Burns, Tina Clifford, Tony Johnson, Karen Leytham, Geoff Marsland, 

Ian McCulloch, Sylvia Rogerson, Peter Robinson and Paul Woodruff 
 

 
 
 



 

(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 
 

 Please contact Sharon Marsh, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582096 or email 
smarsh@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on 12th January 2009 

 



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
  
 

Constitutional Amendment – Composition of Cabinet 
Liaison Groups 

  
Report of the Chief Executive 

21st January 2009  
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider whether each Political Group represented on the Council should have the option 
to appoint a representative to participate in future Cabinet Liaison Groups. 
 
This report is public. 

 
 
1.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That Audit Committee consider the matter of whether or not each Political 

Group should have the option to appoint a representative to participate in 
Cabinet Liaison Groups formed in the future, and if so make an appropriate 
recommendation to Council Business Committee regarding the amendment of 
the Constitution.  

 
2.0   Introduction 
 
2.1    A report has been requested by a Member on a possible change to the Council’s 

Constitution to allow all Political Groups represented on the City Council the option to 
appoint a representative to future Cabinet Liaison Groups.  

 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 Members will be aware that Cabinet Liaison Groups are purely consultative and not 

decision-making bodies. They are chaired by a Member of Cabinet and there is no 
restriction on size although the group must be limited to what is manageable and 
effective for their purpose. They may be time limited or of longer standing, again 
depending on their purpose. Each Cabinet Liaison Group has its terms of reference 
and expected outputs approved by Cabinet before it meets. 

 
3.2 Currently, the participants in Cabinet Liaison Groups are invited to take part by the 

Chairman and can be made up from any or all of the following: 
 

• Other Members of Cabinet 
• Other Members of Council not on Cabinet 
• Others from outside the Council 
• Council Officers 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



 
There is no requirement currently for the Chairman to invite an Elected Member from 
each Political Group represented on the Council to take part in a Cabinet Liaison 
Group.  
 

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1 Option 1 – to amend the Council’s Constitution to state that the Chairman of a 

Cabinet Liaison Group must invite a Member from each Political Group represented 
on the Council to take part in future Cabinet Liaison Groups. In accordance with 
Article 15 of the Constitution this will require a recommendation from this Committee 
to the Council Business Committee. This may result in larger Cabinet Liaison Groups 
but would ensure that each Political Group had a ‘voice’ on the Cabinet Liaison 
Group. Political Groups may perceive this as a fairer option. With this option, the 
Cabinet Member chairing the Cabinet Liaison Group may also have a wider 
information and advisory platform to inform executive decision-making and policy 
effectiveness. 

 
4.2 Option 2 – to take no action with regard to amending the Constitution and continue 

with the current arrangement whereby the Chairman of the Cabinet Liaison Group 
decides who he/she will invite to take part, in view of the fact that Cabinet Liaison 
Groups are purely consultative and not decision-making bodies. There is a risk with 
this option that Members of Political Groups who are not invited to take part in a 
Cabinet Liaison Group will feel excluded from the consultative process. 

 
5.0 Conclusion 

5.1 In the light of the information contained in this report, Audit Committee is requested to 
consider whether it would be preferable to amend the Council’s constitution to state 
that the Chairman of a Cabinet Liaison Group must invite a Member from each Political 
Group represented on the Council to take part in future Cabinet Liaison Groups. 

 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
None 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
None 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
None directly arising. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
Cabinet Liaison Groups are not subject to political balance legislation.  
 
Should Option 1 be adopted, the Council’s Constitution would need to be amended 
accordingly. 
 

Page 2



MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Part 4, Section 4, paragraph 2.9 of the 
Council’s Constitution – Cabinet Procedure 
Rules; Cabinet Liaison Groups. 
 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:  01524 582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 
 
 

Page 3



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE   
 
  
 

Democratic Renewal Phase 2 
21st January 2009 

 
Report of the Chief Executive 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To advise the Committee of how opportunities offered by the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007 and other governance and democracy issues resulting from 
the Democratic Renewal Audit, might be taken forward.   
 
This report is public. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the report be noted. 
 
(2) That the Committee considers which of the issues and suggested approaches 

in the report it wishes to take forward.   
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 In September 2003, at the request of the Council, the Audit Commission carried out a 

Democratic Renewal Audit of the Council and produced an action plan, which the 
Council subsequently addressed. In June 2007, the Audit Committee received a 
report from the Chief Executive, providing an evaluation of the initiatives that had 
been implemented as a result of the Democratic Renewal Audit. The report 
concluded that Democratic Renewal was now embedded in the Council and an 
agenda that the Council viewed as ongoing. The Committee resolved that the 
functioning of Full Council be considered further with regard to democratic 
modernisation. 

 
1.2 At its meeting on 20th December 2007 the Local Governance Committee requested 

Officers to bring forward a Democratic Renewal Phase Two report in order to enable 
the Council to consider which opportunities offered by the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and other governance and democracy issues 
it might wish to take forward. 

  
2.0 Democratic Renewal – issues and suggested approaches 
 
2.1 The table at Appendix 1 summarises the various matters relating to governance and 

democracy which the Committee might like to take forward, and suggests an 
approach for tackling each issue. 

 

Agenda Item 6 Page 4



3.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
3.1 The options for consideration are:- 
 
Option 1 Decide to take forward 

only those issues that 
are a statutory 
requirement 

Some of the issues raised are statutory requirements 
and there is a risk that the Council might fail to take 
forward those issues, such as appointing a Leader on 
a four year basis from the next Council election. 

Option 2 Prioritise some of the 
other options to take 
forward 

Prioritisation would allow the most pressing issues to 
be taken forward swiftly, and address any risk of the 
Council failing to meet statutory requirements. 

Option 3 Decide to take all of the 
issues forward 

There are a significant number of issues in the report 
and, should the Committee decide to take all the 
issues forward, there would still be a need to 
prioritise and set realistic time scales for completion 
that relate to the importance of the issue.   

 
 
4.0 Conclusion  
 
4.1 The issues highlighted in this report form, as requested by this Committee, the 

second phase of the Democratic Renewal process to ensure that the Council 
continues to make improvements to its democratic processes.   

 
 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
There are no implications arising from this report. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report.  Any proposals for change 
will be evaluated for financial implications in the relevant report, prior to decisions being 
taken. 
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

Page 5



 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The report sets out any statutory requirements for change as result of the Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and highlights the need for amendments to the 
Council’s Constitution where applicable. 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Democratic Renewal Report and Survey 
Results 2003 
Audit Committee agenda and minutes 27th 
June 2007 
Local Governance Committee agenda and 
minutes 20th December 2007 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone: 01524 582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 6



To
pi

c 
Is

su
es

 
Su

gg
es

te
d 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
1 

Th
e 

C
on

st
itu

tio
n 

• 
P

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r a
m

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

in
g 

co
ns

tit
ut

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
cl

ar
ify

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
in

g.
 

• 
U

rg
en

t b
us

in
es

s 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
. 

• 
S

pe
ci

al
 U

rg
en

cy
 to

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

fro
m

 a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 o

f O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ha

irm
an

 o
f 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

• 
S

im
pl

ify
 a

nd
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
do

cu
m

en
t i

ts
el

f –
 

in
de

xi
ng

, c
on

tin
uo

us
 p

ag
e-

nu
m

be
rin

g,
 te

rm
in

ol
og

y 
us

ed
, 

m
in

or
 a

no
m

al
ie

s 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d,

 e
tc

. 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

 fu
rth

er
 re

po
rt 

fo
r t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

th
e 

is
su

es
 a

nd
 o

pt
io

ns
. 

2 
A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
t o

f 
Le

ad
er

 
Th

e 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

ay
s 

th
at

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 e
le

ct
 th

e 
Le

ad
er

 
an

d 
C

ab
in

et
 a

nn
ua

lly
. A

s 
a 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 I
nv

ol
ve

m
en

t 
in

 H
ea

lth
 A

ct
 2

00
7,

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
its

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 fo

r 
ap

po
in

tin
g 

th
e 

Le
ad

er
 to

 b
e 

on
 a

 fo
ur

 y
ea

r 
ba

si
s,

 w
ith

 th
e 

Le
ad

er
 th

en
 s

el
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

C
ab

in
et

. 
Th

e 
ne

w
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t c
am

e 
in

to
 fo

rc
e 

2 
m

on
th

s 
af

te
r t

he
 A

ct
 w

as
 

pa
ss

ed
, 

so
 w

ill
 b

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

fro
m

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
C

ou
nc

il 
el

ec
tio

n 
in

 
20

11
. 

A
 re

so
lu

tio
n 

m
ak

in
g 

th
es

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
m

us
t b

e 
pa

ss
ed

 a
t a

 s
pe

ci
al

ly
 c

on
ve

ne
d 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
g 

be
fo

re
 3

1st
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
0.

 H
ow

ev
er

, b
et

w
ee

n 
th

en
 a

nd
 th

ird
 d

ay
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
el

ec
tio

ns
 in

 2
01

1,
 k

no
w

n 
as

 th
e 

“tr
an

si
tio

na
l 

pe
rio

d”
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 is

 a
llo

w
ed

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
op

er
at

e 
its

 c
ur

re
nt

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

3 
B

ye
la

w
s 

P
ar

t 6
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

H
ea

lth
 

A
ct

 2
00

7 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

at
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 m
ak

e 
ce

rta
in

 b
yl

aw
s 

an
d 

en
fo

rc
e 

th
em

 w
ith

 fi
xe

d 
pe

na
lty

 n
ot

ic
es

 
w

ith
ou

t a
gr

ee
m

en
t f

ro
m

 c
en

tra
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t. 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 re

qu
es

t t
ha

t t
he

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
O

ffi
ce

r l
oo

ks
 in

to
 th

e 
co

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s.

  

4 
Pe

tit
io

ns
 

Th
e 

re
ce

nt
 W

hi
te

 P
ap

er
, C

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 C
on

tro
l, 

hi
gh

lig
ht

s 
th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 p

et
iti

on
s 

ha
ve

 b
ec

om
e 

ea
si

er
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
In

te
rn

et
 a

nd
 

ou
tli

ne
s 

pl
an

s 
to

 in
tro

du
ce

 a
 n

ew
 d

ut
y 

fo
r c

ou
nc

ils
 to

 re
sp

on
d 

to
 

pe
tit

io
ns

, e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t l

oc
al

 s
up

po
rt 

ar
e 

pr
op

er
ly

 d
eb

at
ed

. I
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 th
is

 d
ut

y,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
m

ay
 w

is
h 

to
 

am
en

d 
th

e 
co

ns
tit

ut
io

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

ru
le

s 
to

 s
ta

te
 th

at
 p

et
iti

on
s 

to
 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pa

ss
ed

 to
 th

e 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 c

on
si

de
r a

nd
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 a
ny

 in
qu

iry
 w

or
k,

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, b

ef
or

e 
re

po
rti

ng
 b

ac
k 

to
 C

ab
in

et
 o

r t
he

 re
le

va
nt

 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 c

on
si

de
r w

he
th

er
 it

 w
is

he
s 

to
 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

ru
le

s 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

B
us

in
es

s 
C

om
m

itt
ee

.  
 

Page 7



de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

bo
dy

. 
5 

C
ou

nc
il 

Th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 t

ha
t 

fu
rth

er
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

be
 

gi
ve

n 
to

 s
pe

ak
in

g 
at

 F
ul

l C
ou

nc
il.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 v

ie
w

 th
at

, d
es

pi
te

 a
 

pr
ev

io
us

 r
ev

ie
w

, f
ur

th
er

 ti
gh

te
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 ti
m

e 
lim

its
 o

n 
sp

ea
ki

ng
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d.
 T

he
se

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

 
2 

m
in

ut
es

 to
 a

sk
 a

 q
ue

st
io

n 
or

 a
 s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 q
ue

st
io

n 
 

3 
m

in
ut

es
 to

 re
sp

on
d 

to
 a

 q
ue

st
io

n 
 

5 
m

in
ut

es
 to

 p
re

se
nt

 a
 p

et
iti

on
 o

r a
dd

re
ss

  
 

5 
m

in
ut

es
 s

pe
ak

in
g 

tim
e 

du
rin

g 
de

ba
te

 o
r 

to
 m

ov
e 

a 
m

ot
io

n 
 

30
 m

in
ut

es
 in

 to
ta

l f
or

 p
ub

lic
 q

ue
st

io
n 

tim
e 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 n
o 

lim
it 

to
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f q

ue
st

io
ns

 
w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

as
ke

d 
by

 c
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

at
 C

ou
nc

il.
  T

he
re

 a
re

 a
 

nu
m

be
r o

f o
pt

io
ns

 to
 re

st
ric

t t
he

 le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e 
de

vo
te

d 
to

 s
uc

h 
qu

es
tio

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 li

m
iti

ng
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f q

ue
st

io
ns

 p
er

 c
ou

nc
ill

or
 

or
 in

tro
du

ci
ng

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l t

im
e 

lim
it.

 
  C

ur
re

nt
ly

 th
er

e 
is

 s
co

pe
 fo

r C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
rs

, a
 C

ha
irm

an
 o

f a
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

r a
n 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

m
ee

tin
g 

to
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

qu
es

tio
ns

 o
f a

 fa
ct

ua
l n

at
ur

e 
on

 is
su

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 o
ut

si
de

 th
ei

r 
re

m
its

. I
t i

s 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 th
is

 is
 ti

gh
te

ne
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

re
at

er
 

cl
ar

ity
 fo

r C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

an
d 

O
ffi

ce
rs

. 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 c

on
si

de
r w

he
th

er
 to

 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

B
us

in
es

s 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t t
im

e 
lim

its
 a

nd
/o

r i
nt

ro
du

ci
ng

 
an

y 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

qu
es

tio
ns

 fr
om

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
s.

 
             O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 re

po
rt 

as
ki

ng
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 c
on

si
de

r i
ns

tig
at

in
g 

a 
‘fi

lte
r’ 

sy
st

em
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
to

 a
llo

w
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
to

 re
je

ct
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

re
m

its
 o

f t
he

 M
em

be
r t

he
y 

ar
e 

di
re

ct
ed

 to
.  

 
6 

O
ut

si
de

 B
od

y,
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 
an

d 
B

oa
rd

 
A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 

O
ut

si
de

 b
od

y 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

en
ef

it 
fro

m
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 

ac
tiv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

its
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

 T
hi

s 
re

vi
ew

 h
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 b
ee

n 
su

gg
es

te
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 G
ra

nt
s 

Ta
sk

 G
ro

up
 a

nd
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 a
m

en
de

d 
its

 p
ro

to
co

l f
or

 m
ak

in
g 

ap
po

in
tm

en
ts

 to
 o

ut
si

de
 b

od
ie

s.
  I

t i
s 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 

gu
id

an
ce

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 o
n 

ou
ts

id
e 

bo
di

es
; 

th
at

 re
po

rti
ng

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

an
d 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 

co
ul

d 
al

so
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 th

at
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

is
 g

iv
en

 to
 h

ow
 

C
ou

nc
il 

po
lic

y 
ca

n 
be

 p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 C

ou
nc

il 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 c

on
si

de
rs

 th
es

e 
is

su
es

.  

Page 8



pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s.

 
7 

O
ffi

ce
r T

ra
in

in
g 

It 
is

 e
vi

de
nt

 th
at

 in
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 s
om

e 
of

fic
er

s 
ar

e 
ha

vi
ng

 d
iff

ic
ul

ty
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
th

e 
de

ci
si

on
-m

ak
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
 F

ur
th

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

   

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 ta

rg
et

 th
is

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
t t

he
 

ar
ea

s 
of

 m
os

t n
ee

d 
an

d 
se

ek
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t f
ro

m
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

 to
 m

ak
e 

th
is

 m
an

da
to

ry
 

8 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
D

ec
is

io
n-

m
ak

in
g 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

of
 t

he
 M

od
er

n.
go

v 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sy

st
em

 
th

at
 

w
ill

 
fu

rth
er

 
im

pr
ov

e 
an

d 
he

lp
 

co
-

or
di

na
te

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
 P

ap
er

le
ss

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 
pi

lo
te

d 
by

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, 

w
ith

 
ve

ry
 

fe
w

 
pr

ob
le

m
s.

 
A

dv
an

ta
ge

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 c

os
ts

 o
f p

rin
tin

g 
an

d 
di

st
rib

ut
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 
m

em
be

rs
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
if 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
is

he
s 

to
 

pu
rs

ue
 

th
is

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
, 

it 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 
to

 
co

ns
id

er
 

su
pp

ly
in

g 
al

l 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
w

ith
 la

pt
op

s 
(c

ur
re

nt
ly

 s
ix

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

us
e 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
co

m
pu

te
r 

vi
a 

N
et

ill
a 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ne

tw
or

k)
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 t

he
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 w
ire

le
ss

 n
et

w
or

ks
 t

o 
al

l 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 
ro

om
s 

us
ed

 fo
r m

ee
tin

gs
.  

 

A
 fu

lle
r r

ep
or

t t
o 

be
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r C

ou
nc

il 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 th

at
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e.

 
 A

 fu
ll 

re
po

rt 
fo

r c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
by

 th
is

 C
om

m
itt

ee
, i

n 
th

e 
fir

st
 in

st
an

ce
, o

n 
th

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
m

ad
e,

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 
re

ce
iv

ed
, p

ro
bl

em
s 

en
co

un
te

re
d 

an
d 

es
tim

at
ed

 
co

st
s 

of
 s

up
pl

yi
ng

 m
or

e 
la

pt
op

s 
an

d 
w

ire
le

ss
 

ne
tw

or
k.

 

9 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
W

or
ki

ng
, 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 

D
ev

ol
ve

d 
D

ec
is

io
n-

M
ak

in
g 

P
ou

lto
n 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
a 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
or

y 
B

ud
ge

tin
g 

pi
lo

t 
in

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
08

. 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

or
y 

B
ud

ge
tin

g 
of

fe
rs

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ay
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
 a

  
re

al
 s

ay
 in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
ho

w
 m

on
ey

 is
 s

pe
nt

 in
 t

he
ir 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

w
hi

ls
t f

ul
ly

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

em
 in

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ay

 w
is

h 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
if 

it 
w

is
he

s 
to

 e
xt

en
d 

th
is

 t
o 

ot
he

r 
gr

an
t/i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t b

ud
ge

ts
 o

r m
ai

ns
tre

am
 b

ud
ge

ts
.  

 U
nd

er
 t

he
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

an
d 

P
ub

lic
 I

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t 

in
 H

ea
lth

 
A

ct
 2

00
7,

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 d
el

eg
at

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

A
ct

 2
00

0 
to

 i
nd

iv
id

ua
l 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
on

 is
su

es
 th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 th
ei

r 
w

ar
d 

or
 

to
 a

llo
ca

te
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 th

ei
r w

ar
d.

  
 

A
 re

po
rt 

ev
al

ua
tin

g 
th

e 
ev

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 

C
ab

in
et

 fo
r i

ts
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

in
 d

ue
 c

ou
rs

e.
 

      
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 fu

ll 
re

po
rt 

to
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

sk
in

g 
M

em
be

rs
 to

 c
on

si
de

r:-
 

 • 
w

hi
ch

 fu
nc

tio
ns

, i
f a

ny
, i

t w
is

he
s 

to
 d

el
eg

at
e 

to
 W

ar
d 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 it
 w

is
he

s 

Page 9



A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

an
d 

P
ub

lic
 I

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t 

in
 

H
ea

lth
 A

ct
 2

00
7 

pr
ov

id
es

 t
he

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 f
or

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
 

co
ns

id
er

 if
 t

he
y 

w
is

h 
to

 r
eq

ue
st

 a
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

re
vi

ew
 t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

si
ng

le
 m

em
be

r w
ar

ds
, w

hi
ch

 a
re

 u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

to
 a

ss
is

t C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t t

he
ir 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

na
l r

ol
e 

in
 a

 s
im

ila
r w

ay
 to

 M
P

s.
  

 Th
e 

re
ce

nt
 W

hi
te

 P
ap

er
, 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 C

on
tro

l h
ig

hl
ig

ht
s 

ho
w

 
th

e 
tra

ns
fe

r 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

s 
ca

n 
he

lp
 e

m
po

w
er

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.  

 Th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

 I
nv

ol
ve

m
en

t 
in

 H
ea

lth
 A

ct
 

20
07

 p
la

ce
s 

gr
ea

t 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

in
 t

he
ir 

ro
le

 a
s 

co
m

m
un

ity
 le

ad
er

s.
 It

 w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t f
or

 m
em

be
rs

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

w
ha

t o
ffi

ce
r s

up
po

rt 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
ar

e 
m

os
t a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
.  

to
 

 • 
co

ns
id

er
 s

in
gl

e 
m

em
be

r w
ar

ds
. 

    A
 re

po
rt 

to
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 p

re
se

nt
in

g 
fu

rth
er

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 h
el

p 
M

em
be

rs
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

an
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 tr

an
sf

er
 o

f a
ss

et
s 

to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

s 
 

A
 re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 ta
ke

 
a 

de
ci

si
on

 o
n 

th
es

e 
M

em
be

r D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
ss

ue
s.

 
   

10
 

To
w

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
Pa

ris
h 

C
ou

nc
ils

 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ag
re

ed
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

M
or

ec
am

be
 T

ow
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
ou

gh
t n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 s
up

po
rt,

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
co

nt
ac

t t
ha

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 th

is
 n

ew
 

To
w

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 th
at

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

ils
.  

C
ou

nc
il 

ne
ed

s 
to

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

 s
up

po
rt,

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
co

nt
ac

t t
ha

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 a

ny
 n

ew
 T

ow
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
is

 w
ou

ld
 p

re
se

nt
 a

 
go

od
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 re
vi

ew
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

in
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
ils

. 
11

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
n 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
ha

d 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
d 

no
 o

ve
ra

rc
hi

ng
 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 g

ui
de

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
ct

iv
ity

; t
he

re
 w

as
 n

o 
fo

rm
al

 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f w
ha

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

a 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 
ha

d 
no

 f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

ev
al

ua
tin

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
th

em
.  

 Th
e 

C
ab

in
et

 L
ia

is
on

 r
ol

es
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t 
by

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

M
em

be
rs

 a
re

 n
ot

 fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
ne

ed
s 

to
 

be
 re

vi
ew

ed
.  

 Th
e 

ne
w

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 C

al
l 

fo
r 

A
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 h

ow
 i

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 (O

S
C

) t
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
es

e 
is

su
es

.  
A

 re
po

rt 
on

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 W
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
w

as
 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 th
e 

B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

an
el

 in
 

Ju
ly

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

 C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 O
S

C
 to

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 L

ia
is

on
 

ro
le

s 
of

 O
&

S
 M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 w

he
th

er
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

t n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e.

  
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 re

po
rt 

to
 C

ou
nc

il.
 

Page 10



A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 
re

qu
ire

 
to

 
be

 
m

ad
e 

to
 

th
e 

co
ns

tit
ut

io
n 

an
d 

a 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

is
su

e 
of

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
fro

m
 t

he
 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f S
ta

te
. 

12
 

U
ni

ta
ry

 L
oc

al
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

W
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

is
 s

til
l C

ou
nc

il 
po

lic
y,

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t h

as
 in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

an
y 

fu
rth

er
 in

vi
ta

tio
ns

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 

un
ita

ry
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
lif

e 
of

 th
is

 p
ar

lia
m

en
t. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

H
ea

lth
 A

ct
 2

00
7 

do
es

 m
ak

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 B

ou
nd

ar
y 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
n 

its
 o

w
n 

in
iti

at
iv

e,
 o

r a
t t

he
 re

qu
es

t o
f t

he
 S

ec
re

ta
ry

 o
f S

ta
te

 o
r a

 lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
, t

o 
co

nd
uc

t a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f o

ne
 o

r m
or

e 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
ar

ea
s.

 T
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

re
su

lt 
in

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
 o

f a
 b

ou
nd

ar
y,

 a
bo

lit
io

n 
of

 
a 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t a

re
a 

or
 c

re
at

io
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 a
re

a.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 in
 th

is
 p

ow
er

 in
 th

at
 it

 c
an

no
t r

es
ul

t i
n 

w
ho

le
sa

le
 

ch
an

ge
s 

fro
m

 tw
o 

tie
r t

o 
si

ng
le

 ti
er

 o
r v

ic
e-

ve
rs

a,
 b

ut
 a

pp
ea

rs
 to

 
al

lo
w

 fo
r c

ha
ng

es
 b

en
ea

th
 th

is
 le

ve
l, 

fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 

a 
un

ita
ry

 L
an

ca
st

er
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
if 

a 
tw

o 
tie

r a
rr

an
ge

m
en

t 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

in
 s

om
e 

or
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

re
st

 o
f L

an
ca

sh
ire

.  

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 c

on
si

de
r w

he
th

er
 it

 w
is

he
s 

to
 

re
ce

iv
e 

fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
is

 is
su

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
m

ak
e 

a 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
to

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

13
 

R
at

io
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 B

ur
ea

uc
ra

cy
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

In
no

va
tio

n 
Fo

ru
m

 h
as

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
de

m
oc

ra
tic

 
an

d 
de

ci
si

on
-m

ak
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
ta

ke
s 

to
o 

lo
ng

 a
nd

 is
 o

ve
rly

 
co

m
pl

ic
at

ed
. T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
fe

el
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 

ov
er

ly
 ri

sk
 a

ve
rs

e.
  

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
a 

fu
rth

er
 re

po
rt 

on
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

ge
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

m
ak

e 
a 

de
ci

si
on

. 

14
 

M
ee

tin
g 

R
oo

m
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 a

re
 u

se
d 

fo
r C

ou
nc

il 
m

ee
tin

gs
. W

hi
ls

t t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

ro
om

s 
do

 h
av

e 
in

du
ct

io
n 

lo
op

s 
fit

te
d,

 t
he

re
 i

s 
no

 P
A

 s
ys

te
m

, 
m

ak
in

g 
so

m
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 d
iff

ic
ul

t 
to

 h
ea

r. 
A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, 

m
an

y 
m

ee
tin

gs
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

ud
io

vi
su

al
 m

ul
tim

ed
ia

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
he

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
bu

t h
as

 to
 b

e 
pu

t i
nt

o 
m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
s 

on
 a

 t
em

po
ra

ry
 b

as
is

. 
Th

is
 c

an
 i

nv
ol

ve
 t

el
ev

is
io

ns
 f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 s

cr
ee

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
or

s 
el

se
w

he
re

, h
ow

ev
er

 th
es

e 
do

 n
ot

 e
na

bl
e 

al
l 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 t

o 
se

e 
th

e 
im

ag
es

 
co

m
fo

rta
bl

y.
 

 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ob

ta
in

ed
 o

n 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
C

ha
m

be
r a

t 
M

or
ec

am
be

 T
ow

n 
H

al
l u

si
ng

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
po

rta
bl

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t w

hi
ch

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
be

 u
se

d 
at

 L
an

ca
st

er
 

To
w

n 
H

al
l a

nd
 it

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

is
 u

is
su

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

-s
et

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

20
09

/1
0.

  H
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t f

in
an

ci
al

 s
itu

at
io

n 
ha

s 
le

d 
to

 th
is

 g
ro

w
th

 b
id

 b
ei

ng
 w

ith
dr

aw
n 

at
 th

is
 

st
ag

e.
  

Page 11



15
 

In
di

vi
du

al
 

C
ab

in
et

 
M

em
be

r 
D

ec
is

io
ns

 
an

d 
O

ffi
ce

r 
D

el
eg

at
io

n 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 i

t 
is

 t
he

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

th
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

on
 a

 r
ep

or
t 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
Th

er
e 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
 

in
 

th
is

 
ar

ea
 

an
d 

it 
is

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ta
ke

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

ob
ta

in
in

g 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
en

su
re

 a
 le

ve
l o

f c
on

si
st

en
cy

.  
 

 In
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 to
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f C
ou

nc
ils

, L
an

ca
st

er
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
cu

rr
en

tly
 h

as
 a

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
 le

ve
l o

f d
el

eg
at

io
n 

to
 o

ffi
ce

rs
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

an
 a

re
a 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
is

he
s 

to
 re

vi
ew

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 

Th
at

 D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ta
ke

 o
ve

r t
hi

s 
ro

le
 a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ac
co

rd
in

gl
y.

 
     O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 re

po
rt 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 a
ss

is
t 

M
em

be
rs

 to
 re

vi
ew

 th
is

 a
re

a.
 

16
 

M
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 
M

in
ut

es
 

Th
er

e 
is

 fe
lt 

to
 b

e 
sc

op
e 

fo
r 

fu
rth

er
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
an

d 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
gs

. F
or

 in
st

an
ce

, i
t i

s 
fe

lt 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 m
er

it 
in

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

A
pp

ea
ls

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

as
 i

ts
 f

un
ct

io
ns

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
by

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

B
us

in
es

s 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 t
he

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

of
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 ti
m

e,
 w

ith
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

gi
ve

n 
to

 m
or

e 
in

no
va

tiv
e 

w
ay

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 

of
 

of
fic

er
 

tim
e 

sp
en

t 
in

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

In
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, 
C

ab
in

et
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ay
 

be
ne

fit
 fr

om
 fu

rth
er

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 s
ta

rt 
an

d 
fin

is
h 

tim
es

 d
ue

 to
 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

es
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

. 
 C

ab
in

et
 M

in
ut

es
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 c
on

ta
in

 th
e 

fu
ll 

op
tio

ns
 a

nd
 o

pt
io

ns
 

an
al

ys
is

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ite
m

 o
f b

us
in

es
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

pr
io

r t
o 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

ha
vi

ng
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
ll 

C
ab

in
et

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 

en
ab

le
 M

em
be

rs
 to

 p
ro

pe
rly

 c
on

si
de

r w
he

th
er

 a
 c

al
l i

n 
w

as
 

ju
st

ifi
ed

. I
t i

s 
fe

lt 
th

at
 th

is
 le

ve
l o

f d
et

ai
l, 

of
te

n 
ru

nn
in

g 
to

 m
an

y 
pa

ge
s,

 is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 re
qu

ire
d.

 
 C

ou
nc

il 
A

ge
nd

a 
cu

rr
en

tly
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 L
ea

de
rs

’ R
ep

or
t a

nd
 th

e 
m

in
ut

es
 o

f C
ab

in
et

.  
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t f
or

m
at

 o
f t

he
 L

ea
de

rs
’ R

ep
or

t 
es

se
nt

ia
lly

 d
up

lic
at

es
 th

e 
la

te
r c

ab
in

et
 m

in
ut

es
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 c

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
 o

f 
C

ab
in

et
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 fo

r t
he

ir 
vi

ew
s.

  
          H

ea
d 

of
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 re

po
rt 

to
 

O
S

C
 w

ith
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r t
he

 O
S

C
 to

 re
co

m
m

en
d 

to
 

C
ab

in
et

 fo
r r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 C

ab
in

et
 

m
in

ut
es

, n
ow

 th
at

 th
e 

fu
ll 

ag
en

da
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 
O

&
S

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
s.

  
  A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 c
on

si
de

r w
he

th
er

 to
 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

th
at

 th
e 

C
on

st
itu

tio
n 

be
 a

m
en

de
d 

to
 re

m
ov

e 
th

e 

Page 12



pr
ov

id
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 o
th

er
 e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

is
su

es
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

la
st

 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
ha

s 
sh

ow
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 y
ea

r 
th

at
 m

os
t q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
re

 a
sk

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Le

ad
er

’s
 re

po
rt 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

un
de

r t
he

 C
ab

in
et

 M
in

ut
es

 it
em

  I
t i

s 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 a

sk
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 o
n 

C
ab

in
et

 M
in

ut
es

 re
m

ai
ns

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
un

de
r t

he
 L

ea
de

r’s
 R

ep
or

t 
ite

m
, t

he
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

ite
m

 o
f C

ab
in

et
 M

in
ut

es
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 
fro

m
 th

e 
ag

en
da

.  
P

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
, b

ea
rin

g 
in

 m
in

d 
th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f 

C
ab

in
et

 m
in

ut
es

 a
t t

he
 p

re
se

nt
 ti

m
e,

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
sa

vi
ng

 in
 p

ap
er

 a
nd

 p
rin

tin
g 

co
st

s 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

re
m

ov
in

g 
an

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 d

up
lic

at
io

n 
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
g.

   

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
C

ab
in

et
 M

in
ut

es
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ag

en
da

. 

17
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Su

pp
or

t a
nd

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

N
ee

ds
 w

er
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
to

  
 

fu
rth

er
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
C

ab
in

et
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

om
e 

de
di

ca
te

d 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
rs

 to
 a

ss
is

t 
th

em
 w

ith
 re

se
ar

ch
, a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n,

 e
tc

 
 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
or

e 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t f
or

 C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
rs

. 

In
 J

un
e,

 C
ou

nc
il 

B
us

in
es

s 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 re
so

lv
ed

 th
at

 
P

ol
iti

ca
l L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

a 
pr

io
rit

y 
in

 th
e 

S
tra

te
gy

 a
s 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t a
re

a 
an

d 
th

at
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

ho
w

 in
du

ct
io

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 C
ab

in
et

 
M

em
be

rs
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 u
po

n.
 T

hi
s 

w
or

k 
is

 in
 

pr
og

re
ss

. 
 

Page 13



   

Audit Committee  
Results of Internal Audit Work 

21st January 2009 

Report of Internal Audit Manager 

 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To inform the Committee of the results of Internal Audit work for the period. 
 
This report is public 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
(1) That the report is noted. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
1.1 Part of the Audit Committee's terms of reference is: 

"To receive and review the findings of both Internal and External Audit examinations 
and to ensure that management takes appropriate action to implement agreed 
recommendations and to remedy any internal accounting, organisational or 
operational control weaknesses identified."  (Constitution part 3, section 7, § 10)  

2.0 Results of Internal Audit Work to 31st December 2008 
2.1 This report covers audit work and reports issued since the last report to Committee 

on 24th September 2008.  Summary reports are issued to Members for consideration 
and are also posted on the Council’s Intranet. 

2.2 If there are any specific questions about a report, or more detailed information is 
required, it would be helpful if Members could contact the Internal Audit Manager on 
telephone number 582028 or email dwhiteway@lancaster.gov.uk prior to the 
meeting. 

2.3 The list below gives the assurance opinion issued for areas audited since the 
September 2008 meeting. 

 

Audit Title Report Date Assurance Level 

New Audit Reports 

07/0676 Salt Ayre Sports Centre 12/09/08 Limited  
07/0685 Electronic Data Matching System 26/09/08 Reasonable  
07/0701 Procurement & Contract Management 01/10/08 Limited  
07/0684 Civica Authority Financials System 03/10/08 Reasonable  
08/0724 Land Charges 05/11/08 Limited  
07/0683 Storey Creative Industries 18/11/08 Reasonable  
08/0727 Public Health and Safety 02/12/08 Substantial  
07/0709 Payroll 04/12/08 Limited  

Agenda Item 7 Page 14



   

Audit Title Report Date Assurance Level 

New Audit Reports 

08/0732 Economic Dev Marketing & Promotion 12/12/08 Reasonable  
08/0736 Business Continuity Planning 15/12/08 Reasonable  
08/0753 Williamson Park – Financial Procedures  Limited  
Follow up Reviews 

05/0610 Internal Communications 09/09/08 Reasonable  
07/0707 Council Tax 24/09/08 Reasonable  
07/0675 Housing Advances 04/11/08 Reasonable  
07/0710 Ordering and Payments 2007/08 11/11/08 Reasonable  
07/0658 Licensing 28/11/08 Reasonable  

3.0 Matters Arising from Audit Reviews 
3.1 Members’ attention is drawn to the audits where a “Limited” assurance opinion has 

been issued; there have been no audits resulting in a “Minimal” assurance opinion.  
The following audits completed since the last meeting of Committee have been 
issued with a “Limited” assurance opinion: 

07/0676 - Salt Ayre Sports Centre 
Risks for which a “Reasonable” level of assurance could not be given include: 

o Adequate separation of duties and supervision in relation to the management of 
the booking system (Scuba) operated at the Centre to reduce the risk of error of 
fraud being undetected 

o Arrangements for the reconciliation of the booking system to the Main 
Accounting System, to inform decision making, and; 

o The potential for inefficiencies in the use of the booking system and poor cost 
effectiveness in raising and managing debtor invoices 

A programme of agreed actions is in place, including a proposed restructure of the 
Centre to be completed by April 2009.  When implemented, these actions will enable 
the assurance level to be raised to “Reasonable”.  

07/0701 - Procurement and Contract Management 
This report notes that many improvements have been made in recent years in 
relation to the Council’s procurement arrangements and that the ‘Limited’ opinion 
given refers to specific areas of procurement and contract management where it is 
known that there is scope to improve management of the risks. 

Eight actions have been agreed with management to ensure that: 

o Strategic procurement aims and objectives are clearly stated and understood; 

o Corporate engagement of these stated aims and objectives is enhanced, and; 

o To provide an effective means of monitoring procurement progress and 
performance 

The majority of these actions are due to be implemented during 2009. 

 

 

 

Page 15



   

08/0724 - Land Charges 
Several short-term and relatively minor actions have been agreed with management 
to improve the overall reliability and integrity of the automated Land Charges System 
(Northgate).   

The most significant risks relate to the cost effectiveness of the service and the fact 
that the Council’s ‘market share’ for the provision of land searches may be 
compromised if fees do not demonstrably reflect the cost of the service.  Actions to 
mitigate these risks are due for implementation by April 2009, when detailed 
Government guidance should have been made available and implemented. 

 

07/0709 - Payroll 2007/08 
Risks for which a Reasonable level of assurance could not be given include: 

o Risks relating to the potential for discrepancies between the computerised 
Payroll system and the Council’s Establishment Book and the independent 
authorisation of updated and amended payroll data 

o Segregation of duties between payroll reconciliations and validation procedures 
and system integrity checks 

A total of seventeen actions have been agreed with management to improve overall 
management of the risks, although a number of these are longer term (more than 12 
months) and are heavily dependent on an ongoing restructure within Exchequer 
Services, a major review of corporate recruitment arrangements to be undertaken by 
Legal and Human Resources, and the implementation of a fully integrated Human 
Resource/Payroll computerised system. 

08/0753 - Williamson Park Financial Procedures Audit 
Following a formal request, Internal Audit has undertaken a major review of the 
financial procedures arrangements operated by Williamson Park Ltd.  This review 
has resulted in twenty-two actions covering all aspects of petty cash, ordering and 
payment, income management and collection and general security and other related 
operational arrangements.  Given the number of control issues that need to be 
resolved only a ‘Limited’ assurance opinion can be given, although there is some 
confidence that implementation of the agreed actions can result in a ‘Reasonable’ 
opinion in a relatively short period of time. 

The action plan arising from the audit has been agreed with management and is to 
be considered by the Williamson Park Board in early January 2009, with a follow up 
review to be undertaken by 31 March 2009. 

4.0 Update on Previous Assurance Opinions 
4.1 Appendix A provides an updated position for all those audits where the level of 

assurance provided has not yet reached “Reasonable”, including the Salt Ayre 
Sports Centre audit referred to in §3.0 above. 

5.0 Results of Responsive Audit Work (Advice, Support and Investigations) 
5.1 Internal Audit have provided ad-hoc advice and support to all levels of management, 

the most significant of which relate to: 

o Ongoing project assurance and related support work, notably the ongoing Fair 
Pay Project (Internal Audit Manager) and the development of the performance 
management framework in support of the recently launched Sustainable 
Community Strategy and the development of the Storey Creative Industries 
Centre (Principal Auditor) 

 

 

Page 16



   

o Co-ordination and management of the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
requirements, including data extract and submission to the Audit Commission by 
the specified date, and ensuring that members of the public are informed that the 
NFI involves the sharing of personal information with other public bodies in order 
to prevent and detect fraud 

o Lead role in developing the framework for the performance management and 
scrutiny of the Council’s major partnerships, including a ‘mapping’ exercise to 
identify the number and type of existing partnerships and the introduction of a 
Partnership Development and Evaluation Toolkit aimed at evaluating the 
effectiveness of individual partnerships and the Council’s involvement in them. 

6.0 Details of Consultation  
6.1 Not applicable 

7.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
7.1 Not applicable 
 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
None identified 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
None directly arising from this report 
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
Legal Services have been consulted and has no further comments 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Internal Audit Files 
 

Contact Officer: Derek Whiteway 
Telephone:  01524 582028 
E-mail: dwhiteway@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: aud/audcomm/0809/210109/ROIAW 

 

Page 17



Internal Audit - Assurance Opinion Monitoring as at

Appendix A

23 December 2008

Date of
Assessment Source

Level of Assurance
Provided Comments

06/0660 - Housing Rents (debit control)

Limited Raising the assurance level to reasonable should be
achieved by the implementation of agreed actions relating
to the reconciliations to the asset register; checks to verify
the accuracy and validity of changes made; and
reconciliation of the net debit to the general ledger. The
majority of agreed actions should be implemented by 30th
June '08 and a formal follow-up is due by 30th September
'08.

28-Apr-08 Internal Audit - Final
Report

Limited Progress has been delayed due to resources being
focussed on ongoing work with Anite Housing and Anite
(EDMS) modules and new financial monitoring
responsibilities. The majority of actions are now
scheduled to be implemented by 31/12/08 at which point a
formal follow-up will be undertaken.

24-Sep-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

Limited Little progress has been made due to other/increasing
work commitments and cover for officers who have left the
Council and have not been replaced and long-term
sickness. A new version of the Task job management
system is due to be implemented early in the new year,
however, after which arrangements will be made to
consider implementation of the required Anite system
upgrade with a view to addressing the key action of
implementing new arrangements for reconciling the
Housing net debit to the General Ledger

12-Dec-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

07/0676 - Salt Ayre Sports Centre

Limited Raising the assurance level to reasonable could be
achieved by the implementation of agreed actions relating
to: reconciliation of income to the general ledger;
appropriate segregration of duties; and management of
the booking system.

12-Sep-08 Internal Audit - Final
Report

Limited Some progress has been made in implementing agreed
actions, although a number longer term actions have yet
to be implemented including a proposed restructure within
the Sports Centre due to completed by April 2009.

23-Dec-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

Produced on 23/12/2008 10:37:13 Page 1 of 4

Page 18



Date of
Assessment Source

Level of Assurance
Provided Comments

07/0688 - Income Tax and National Insurance 2007/08 (Expenses and Benefits)

Minimal The assurance opinion relates specifically to the payment
of expenses and benefits which is only a small element of
the Council's overall tax arrangements and the potential
impact of being found non compliant in this area is
considered low. Reasonable assurance will take some
time to achieve as procedures for several
expenses/benefits need a thorough review. The
assignment of responsibilities through the impending
recruitment to the Exchequer Services Manager post and
plans to progress with agreed actions should allow the
provision of limited assurance fairly quickly.
Implementation of the action plan should result in the
provision of reasonable assurance.

09-May-08 Internal Audit - Final
Report

Limited The new Exchequer Services Manager has taken
responsibility for taxation relating to Expenses and
Benefits and is in the process of implementing the action
plan. Most significantly a full review of benefits and
expenses payments is to be carried out to ensure
compliance with tax legislation and dispensations will be
applied for as appropriate. Assurance level is raised to
"Limited". Completion of the remaining actions scheduled
for 31/03/09 should raise the assurance level to
"Reasonable". A formal follow-up review will be
undertaken at that stage.

23-Sep-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

Limited Significant progress has been made in that a full review of
expenses and benefits has been carried out and
comprehensive guidance and procedures have been
drafted for employees by the Exchequer Services
Manager. Legal and HR aim to review the guidance this
month which should enable the implementation of related
agreed actions by the end of March 2009. If target dates
are achieved and the guidance is approved, launched and
implemented the assurance rating at the formal follow-up
scheduled for the end of March 2009 should be
'Reasonable'.

09-Dec-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

Produced on 23/12/2008 10:37:13 Page 2 of 4

Page 19



Date of
Assessment Source

Level of Assurance
Provided Comments

07/0704 - Partnership Arrangements 2007/08

Limited Raising the assurance level to reasonable will be achieved
through the identification of the number and type of
partnerships the Council is involved in; introduction of a
toolkit for evaluating the Council's major partnerships and
developments in governance, scrutiny and risk
management arrangements relating to partnership
working.

05-Jun-08 Internal Audit - Final
Report

Limited The proposed partnership performance framework was
considered by the Budget and Performance Panel on
15/07/08 and approved by Individual Cabinet Member
Decision on 22/08/08.

A 'mapping' exercise is underway to determine the
number, type and purpose of existing partnerships and to
follow this up with an assessment of the impact and
effectiveness of individual partnerships. Pilot studies using
the Partnership Development & Evaluation Toolkit are due
to commence for the Community Safety Partnership and
the Museums Partnership by the end of September 2008.

The Principal Auditor is acting as project manager for this
implementation (scheduled to be complete by 31/03/09)
and will provide updates to each future meeting of the
Audit Committee.

19-Sep-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

Limited Significant progress has been made in recent months
following the setting up of a Project Team to deliver the
core objectives of undertaking a 'mapping' exercise to
determine the number, types and purpose of existing
partnerships and to follow this up with an evaluation of
those considered to be of 'major' significance to the
Council. The mapping exercise is on track to be
completed by the end of December and, following a
successful pilot, the evaluation toolkit is scheduled to be
rolled out from January 2009.

Assurance is likely to be raised to 'Reasonable' following
implementation of the toolkit and planned actions to
develop the performance management and governance
arrangements relating to partnership working

12-Dec-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

Produced on 23/12/2008 10:37:13 Page 3 of 4

Page 20



Date of
Assessment Source

Level of Assurance
Provided Comments

07/0708 - Income Management (Housing Rents Direct Debit Payments)

Limited Reasonable assurance could be achieved through
implementation of the Electronic Documentation
Management System (EDMS) and the Anite Direct Debit
Module.

30-Apr-08 Internal Audit - Final
Report

Limited Actions relating to the EDMS implementation within
Council Housing Services have been completed, although
some operational procedures need to be reviewed
following its implementation. The key action required to
raise the assurance opinion to "reasonable" is the
implementation of the Anite Direct Debit module, which is
now expected to be during Summer 2009. A formal
follow-up review will be undertaken at that time.

23-Sep-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

Limited Progress has been limited due to other work
committments and operational issues around the EDMS
implementation. Assurance opinion will remain at 'limited'
until such time as the Anite Direct Debit Module is fully
tested and implemented

12-Dec-08 Management - Post
Audit Review

Produced on 23/12/2008 10:37:13 Page 4 of 4

Page 21


	Agenda
	5 Constitutional Amendment â•ﬁ Composition of Cabinet Liaison Groups
	6 Democratic Renewal Phase 2
	Democratic Renewal Phase 2

	7 Results of Internal Audit Work
	Results of Internal Audit Work - Appendix A


